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ADDENDUM #1 

September 1, 2020 
 

TO:       ALL Prospective Bidders 

PROJECT:    City Fiber Redesign  

BID REFERENCE #:    83829-001.0 

BID OPENING DATE/TIME:   September 8, 2020 @ 3:00 p.m. Local Time 
 

The purpose of this addendum is to clarify and/or modify the Drawings and/or Specifications for this 

project. All work affected is subject to all applicable terms and conditions of the Bidding and Contract 

Documents. 
 

1. NOTE: NEW BID DUE/OPENING DATE: September 8, 2020 @ 3:00pm. 
 

2. REVISED: Due to the amount of construction that will be necessary for this project and the fact that 

sub surface work is not permitted from November 1st to March 1st, we are extending the completion 

date to September 2022.   
 

3. CLARIFICATION: The City does not have a preferred path for runs between the locations.  We are 

looking to leverage the experience of the vendor and their recommended paths.  Prior to any trenching, 

excavation, and boring, the contractor performing the work is responsible to notify '''Miss Dig'' or the 

underground locating system for that area. In addition, the local municipality must be notified to locate 

private services, such as: water, sewer, traffic control, fire alarm, and street lighting. The contractor is 

responsible for maintaining all marks as detailed in the by-laws set up by the federal, state, and local 

government. Copies of the by-laws can be requested through the state locating system in your area.  It 

is appropriate to have several fiber legs to go through the same conduit on common paths. An example 

of this would be the connections listed below. 
 

Example: City Hall to KDPS-HQ leg can also include the runs for City Hall to Stockbridge and City 

Hall to the Farmers Market and junction off at a point along the way. 
 

4. QUESTION: Is this an existing network or a new build? 

ANSWER: This is a new network as we are currently leasing fiber at these locations, we are also doing 

a topology redesign as part of this project so there are no current paths available so it will need to be 

new constructions. 
 

5. QUESTION: Which building is the headend?  

ANSWER: KDPS Crosstown and City Hall are the hubs in the dual hub spoke network.  The connection 

between City Hall and KDPS Crosstown will connect the two hub and spoke networks. 
 

6. QUESTION: Please explain: the cable shall be terminated and spliced at 3 locations along the route. 

ANSWER: The cable should be terminated or spliced a minimum of 3 times along the route. These will 

occur in handholes that will consist of a Quazite type 24''x 24'' enclosure. 
 

7. QUESTION: Is this all underground construction or aerial or both?   

ANSWER: We are requesting all underground construction for this project unless there is a situation 

where aerial would be required, such as crossing a river. 
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8. QUESTION: What size underground conduit and hand holes are required? 

ANSWER: Unground conduit size would consist of 1.5" HDPE conduit for a single run or multiple 

runs can be placed in a subduct in a larger conduit.  Hand holes are to be made of a Quazite type 24'' 

x 24'' enclosure.   
 

9. QUESTION: Does the City have an existing duct that crosses the river? 

ANSWER: The City currently doesn't have any conduit that can be used as part of this project.  An 

aerial application is appropriate to cross the river but will then need to be transferred back to 

underground. 
 

10. QUESTION: What needs to be submitted for permit application process? 

ANSWER: Right of Way application is located at 

https://www.kalamazoocity.org/docman/forms/public-services-1/558-right-of-way-application/file for 

more information. 
 

11. QUESTION: What is the City's approach to having to remove and replace sidewalk flags/asphalt? 

ANSWER: We follow the guidelines for MDOT specifications for replacing the sidewalks and asphalt.   
 

12. QUESTION: At each building, does the City have interior footages of the MDF from the entry point? 

ANSWER:  
 

Site Name1 Address1 
MDF to 

Network 
Drop 

Ceiling 
Clear 
Path 

City Hall 241 W South St 200 Yes Yes 

Harrison 1415 Harrison St. 100 No No 

Stockbridge 415 Stockbridge Ave. 30 Yes Yes 

Plaza Corp 251 N Rose St 150 Yes Yes 

Farmers Market 1204 Bank St 50 No Yes 

Parks & Rec 251 Mills St 50 Yes Yes 

Central Welllfield 215 East Stockbridge Ave 50 No Yes 

Metro 530 N Rose St 100 Yes Yes 

KTC 459 N Burdick St 50 No Yes 

Station 4/5 601 N Park St 100 Yes No 

Station 3 1005 Gull Rd 100 Yes No 

Station 6 1414 Howard St 100 Yes No 

Station 7 2331 Parkview Ave 100 No No 

Station 1 116 West Cedar 100 No No 

Station 2 1007 East Alcott 100 Yes No 

 

13. QUESTION: Are there specific materials manufacturers the City would like to use for fiber cable, 

patch panels & splice cases? 

ANSWER: The City has been using Panduit patch panels and splice cases. 

 

14. QUESTION: Central Wellfield location does not have a building, what do we do there? 

ANSWER: Central Wellfield has a small building at that location, and we would be able to provide 

more information and a walkthrough if necessary, at a later date. 
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15. QUESTION: What will the basis be for payment since the bid is based on lump sum? 

ANSWER: The project is based on a lump sum bid, but the City will make progress payments as the 

work is completed. 

 

16. QUESTION: Please provide details on the value and application of Liquidated Damages. 

ANSWER: The City does not cover Liquidated damages caused by the contractor. 

 

17. QUESTION: Is the city of Kalamazoo conduit system available for use to lower overall construction 

costs? 

ANSWER: There is no current conduit system that is available for use for this project, it will be all new 

construction. 

 

18. QUESTION: If the city of Kalamazoo conduit system is available for use, will the city provide mapping 

of available conduit for the bidders use in calculating the project cost? 

ANSWER: There is no current conduit system that is available for use for this project, it will be all new 

construction. 

 

19. QUESTION: Does the city want the awarded vendor to install Loose Tube or Ribbon fiber optic cable? 

ANSWER: The City is looking to have loose tube fiber optic cable installed. 

 

20. QUESTION: Does the city require armored or non-armored cable? 

ANSWER: Armored cable is not required for OSP cable that is buried.  For interior runs, armored 

cable is not required.  For any exterior aerial runs, armored cable will be required.   

 

21. QUESTION: For new construction, how many inner ducts are to be placed? 

ANSWER: For new construction, when multiple fiber runs are used in a conduit, each run would 

receive its own inner duct. 

 

22. QUESTION: If engineering is part of the contract, does the city have a specification for the format of 

the engineered drawings? 

ANSWER: There are no set specifications for the drawings. 

 

23. QUESTION: If permitting is part of the contract, will permitting fees be paid as a pass through, without 

mark up? 

ANSWER: The permit fee is $150.  Any other permitting fees incurred will not be paid by the City. 

 

24. QUESTION: If permitting is part of the contract, should bidders include an estimate of permit fees in 

their proposal as a separate item? 

ANSWER: Permitting is part of the project and the standard permit fee is $150.  Any other permitting 

fees incurred will not be reimbursed by the City. 

 

25. QUESTION: Please provide a specification for the splice enclosures. 

ANSWER: Splice enclosures for exterior construction are the Quazite type hand holes that are 24'' x 

24'' in size.  50 feet of slack should be placed in each splice enclosure. 

 

26. QUESTION: Please provide a specification for the termination enclosures. 

ANSWER: LC connections should be used for the splice termination. The City uses Panduit termination 

panels. 
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27. QUESTION: What connector style is to be used for the terminations? 

ANSWER: LC connectors should be used on this project. 

 

28. QUESTION: Please provide fiber testing requirements and parameters along with documentation 

acceptance specifications. 

ANSWER: Test requirements are end to end splice testing which should occur within ten working days 

from the completion of the end points.  Optical light source testing should provide dual laser light 

sources with central wavelengths of 13nm(+-30 nm) and 1550n (+-20nm).   

 

29. QUESTION: Will building site walks be scheduled prior to the due date for the RFP to assess ISP 

requirements? 

ANSWER: Building and site walks are not planned as part of the bidding process due to COVID 

restrictions on gatherings.  The City is providing a list of footages and descriptions of the types of 

interior environments. 

 

30. QUESTION: Are the ISP routes a plenum or non-plenum environment? 

ANSWER: For interior of the buildings we require plenum in all locations. 

 

31. QUESTION: Is there an existing conduit path for fiber runs within the buildings? 

ANSWER: Existing conduit paths are present in City Hall.  The other buildings will have existing 

pathways available through interior walls. 

 

32. QUESTION: Will new building entrances be required at every building? If not, which ones require a 

new building entrance?   

ANSWER: City Hall has existing penetration point into the building, for the other locations it is 

recommended to plan on adding exterior penetration point. 

 

33. QUESTION: What will the successful bidder need to provide and install in each building’s network 

room? As an example, will backer boards and panels need to be provided and if so what 

type/manufacture of panel? 

ANSWER: Panduit patch panel for existing network racks with LC connections will need to be 

provided. 

 

34. QUESTION: Will a scissor lift be necessary for the ISP work? 

ANSWER: A scissor lift shouldn't be required. 

 

35. QUESTION: Are there internal wall penetrations required for the fiber path in any of the buildings? If 

so, how many and what type of wall require penetration? 

ANSWER: To our knowledge, additional interior penetrations shouldn't be necessary, however they 

may be required depending on availability of existing penetration points. 
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36. QUESTION: Is the internal fiber run in each building a clear path from the building entrance to the 

network room, are all the runs in open ceilings and what is the footage inside the buildings? 

ANSWER:  
 

Site Name1 Address1 
MDF to 

Network 
Drop 

Ceiling 
Clear 
Path 

City Hall 241 W South St 200 Yes Yes 

Harrison 1415 Harrison St. 100 No No 

Stockbridge 415 Stockbridge Ave. 30 Yes Yes 

Plaza Corp 251 N Rose St 150 Yes Yes 

Farmers Market 1204 Bank St 50 No Yes 

Parks & Rec 251 Mills St 50 Yes Yes 

Central Wellfield 215 East Stockbridge Ave 50 No Yes 

Metro 530 N Rose St 100 Yes Yes 

KTC 459 N Burdick St 50 No Yes 

Station 4/5 601 N Park St 100 Yes No 

Station 3 1005 Gull Rd 100 Yes No 

Station 6 1414 Howard St 100 Yes No 

Station 7 2331 Parkview Ave 100 No No 

Station 1 116 West Cedar 100 No No 

Station 2 1007 East Alcott 100 Yes No 

 

The Addendum can be viewed and downloaded from the City’s website at 

https://www.kalamazoocity.org/bidopportunities.  

 

In order for a bid to be responsive, this signed addendum must be returned with your bid.  
If you have already submitted your bid, acknowledge receipt and acceptance of this addendum by signing 

in the place provided and returning it to the undersigned and it shall be incorporated in your bid.  Please 

identify your return envelope with the bid reference number and project description. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Michelle Emig 
Purchasing Division Manager 
 

c: Joseph Ulery, I/T  

Prevailing Wage File 

 

   

FIRM: ______________________________________   SIGNED: _______________________________

  

 

NAME: _____________________________________   DATE: _________________________________ 

                                  (Type or Print) 
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